
MEETING OF THE LICENSING AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

DATE: THURSDAY, 22 SEPTEMBER 2016 
TIME: 5:30 pm
PLACE: Meeting Room G.01, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles 

Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ

Members of the Committee

Councillor Thomas – Chair
Councillor Byrne – Vice Chair
Councillor Hunter – Vice Chair

Councillors Dr Barton, Cank, Cole, Fonseca, Shelton and Unsworth.

1 unallocated Non-Grouped Place

Members of the Committee are summoned to attend the above meeting to 
consider the items of business listed overleaf.

for The Monitoring Officer

Officer contact : Graham Carey
Democratic Support

Leicester City Council
City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ

 (Tel. 0116 454 6356) 
Email@ graham.carey@leicester.gov.uk

mailto:graham.carey@leicester.gov.uk


Information for members of the public

Attending meetings and access to information

You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings & Scrutiny 
Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes. On occasion however, meetings may, for 
reasons set out in law, need to consider some items in private. 

Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s 
website at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, from the Council’s Customer Service Centre or by 
contacting us using the details below. 

Making meetings accessible to all

Wheelchair access – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users.  
Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the plate 
on the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically.

Braille/audio tape/translation - If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer 
(production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability).

Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms.  Please speak to the 
Democratic Support Officer using the details below.

Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports 
efforts to record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of means, 
including social media.  In accordance with government regulations and the Council’s policy, 
persons and press attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except Licensing Sub 
Committees and where the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to record and/or report 
all or part of that meeting.  Details of the Council’s policy are available at www.leicester.gov.uk or 
from Democratic Support.

If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the relevant 
Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can be notified in 
advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate space in the public 
gallery etc.

The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’s policy is to encourage public interest and 
engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked:

 to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption;
 to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided;
 where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting;
 where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that 

they may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed.

Further information 
If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact 
Graham Carey, Democratic Support on (0116) 454 6356 or email 
graham.carey@leicester.gov.uk or call in at City Hall, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ.

For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 454 4151

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/
http://www.leicester.gov.uk/
mailto:graham.carey@leicester.gov.uk


PUBLIC SESSION

AGENDA

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION

If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the 
nearest available fire exit and proceed to area outside the Ramada Encore Hotel on 
Charles Street as Directed by Democratic Services staff.  Further instructions will then be 
given.

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business on 
the agenda. 

3. MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE 

To note the membership of the Committee for the municipal year 2016/17 as 
approved at the Council meeting on 19 May 2016.

Chair Councillor Thomas
Co Vice-Chair Councillor Byrne
Co Vice-Chair Councillor Hunter

Councillor Barton
Councillor Cank
Councillor Cole
Councillor Fonseca
Councillor Shelton
Councillor Unsworth 

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE Appendix A

To note the Terms of Reference of the Committee that were approved by the 
Annual Council Meeting on 19 May 2016.
  

5. DATES OF COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

To note that the dates for Committee meetings for the municipal year 2016/17 
approved by the Annual Council meeting on 19 April 2016 are:-

Tuesday 25 October 2016
Tuesday 24 January 2016
Tuesday 9 May 2016 



6. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING Appendix B

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 October 2015 are attached and the 
Committee will be asked to confirm them as a correct record.

The minutes can be found on the Council’s website at the following link:-

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk:8071/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=784&Year=0

 
7. PETITIONS 

The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any petitions submitted in 
accordance with the Council’s procedures. 

8. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, STATEMENTS OF 
CASE 

The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any questions, 
representations and statements of case submitted in accordance with the 
Council’s procedures. 

9. OUTCOME OF APPEAL AGAINST REFUSAL OF 
PREMISES LICENCE - LICENSING ACT 2003 - 
CANDLE ROOMS, 25 GRAVEL STREET, LEICESTER 

Appendix C

The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submits a report 
providing the outcome of a recent appeal to the Magistrates’ Court against a 
Licensing Hearing Sub-Committee’s decision to refuse an application for a new 
premises licence.  A copy of the Magistrates’ decision is also submitted for 
Members’ information.

Members are asked to note the report.       

10. SUMMARY UPDATE OF PENALTY POINTS SCHEME Appendix D

The Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services submits a report 
providing an update on the points scheme relating to licensed drivers of 
hackney carriages and private hire vehicles, which came into effect on 1st 
December 2015 on a one year trial basis.  The appendix to the report gives 
details of the penalty points that have been issued.

Members are asked to note the report.            

11. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS 

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk:8071/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=784&Year=0


LICENSING AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE

TERMS OF REFERENCE

1. To secure the health and comfort of the persons living or working in or visiting 
the City by requiring the observance of proper standards by persons owning 
or occupying property in or using the streets or other public places in the City.

2. All licensing and registration functions of the Council with regard to the 
following:-

Licensing Act 2003.
Gambling Act 2005 
Hairdressers and barbers.
Sale of pet animals. 
Caravan sites.
Conduct of animal boarding establishments. 
Conduct of riding establishments.
Hackney carriages and private hire cars and operators and their drivers. 
House to house collections.
Street collections. 
Pool Promoters.
Exposure of goods for sale in streets (Street Trading). 
Scrap metal dealers.
Dog Breeding establishments. 
Sexual Entertainment.
Dangerous Wild Animals. 
Leicester Doorwatch Scheme
Distribution of free printed matter
Skin Piercing and Tatooists
Street Cafés
Skips, scaffolding and deposits on the highway
Zoos

3. To determine the issue of all statutory licences, approvals, certificates and 
consents and the maintenance of all statutory registers except in any case 
where a specific matter falls within the Terms of Reference of another 
Committee or Sub-Committee of Council.

 
4. To enforce any other non-executive licensing legislation which the Council is 

required or empowered to enforce.

5. To exercise the Council's power to take legal proceedings in the public 
interest in relation to matters within the Committee’s Terms of Reference.

6. To keep under review, comment on and provide advice to the City Mayor on 
policies relating to licensing and registration functions of the Council.

1

Appendix A



All matters within the Terms of Reference of the Licensing and Public Safety 
Committee which are not reserved to Full Council, or this Committee as stated 
below, or to a Licensing Sub-Committee are delegated to the Director Local Services 
and Enforcement 

MATTERS RESERVED TO THE LICENSING AND PUBLIC SAFETY
COMMITTEE:-

1. Policy developments of strategic significance relating to the above Terms of 
Reference.

2. Such other matters as the Committee may from time to time reserve to itself 
for decision.

2



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEES

TERMS OF REFERENCE

The Terms of Reference of a Licensing Sub-Committee shall include the functions of 
the Licensing and Public Safety Committee with the exception of the consideration of 
policy issues, which the Licensing and Public Safety Committee has reserved to 
itself.

MATTERS RESERVED TO THE LICENSING ENFORCEMENT SUB COMMITTEE

1. Applications for a licence, consent or permit where a representation had been 
received from a ward councillor, a member of the public or an external 
organisation. (Excluding the Licensing Act 2003 and Gambling Act 2005).

2. Applications for a licence, consent or permit where the Director of Local 
Services and Enforcement considers that the existing policy does not provide 
sufficient clarity on determining the application and/or where it would be more 
appropriate for the application to be determined by the Sub-Committee.

3. Applications for a licence, consent or permit which the law determines cannot 
be taken by an officer.

MATTERS RESERVED TO THE LICENSING HEARINGS SUB-COMMITTEE

1. Decisions required under the Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling Act 2005, 
which the law determines cannot be taken by an officer.

2. Decisions required under the Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling Act 2005 
where the Director of Local Services and Enforcement considers that the 
existing policy does not provide sufficient clarity on determining the 
application and/or where it would be more appropriate for the application to be 
determined by the Sub-Committee.

All matters within the Terms of Reference of a Licensing Sub-Committee which are 
not reserved to Full Council, the Licensing and Public Safety Committee or a Sub-
Committee as stated above, are delegated to the Director of Local Services and 
Enforcement.

N.B.   The City Council’s  Constitution Council Procedure  Rules 4 4 (i) (iv) states 
that decisions which, in the opinion of the Monitoring Officer, are of a quasi- 
judicial nature, which includes the decisions of a Licensing Sub-Committee 
may not be the subject of an Objection.

3





 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the 
LICENSING AND PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 
 
 
Held: TUESDAY, 27 OCTOBER 2015 at 5:30 pm 
 
 
 

P R E S E N T: 
 

 Councillor Cank (Vice-Chair in the Chair)  
 

Councillor Dr Barton 
Councillor Sangster 

Councillor Fonseca 
Councillor Singh Johal 

Councillor Westley 
 

* * *   * *   * * * 
 

19. CHAIR FOR THE MEETING 
 
 In accordance with Rule 41a of Part 4A of the Council Procedure Rules 

Councillor Cank took the Chair in Councillor Thomas’ absence.  
 

20. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Byrne, Hunter and 

Thomas. 
 

21. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Members were asked to declare any interests they might have in the business 

on the agenda.  No such declarations were received. 
 
 

22. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 RESOLVED: 

That the minutes of the meetings held on 28 August and 30 
September (Special Meeting) be confirmed as a correct record. 

 
 

23. PETITIONS 
 
 The Monitoring Officer reported that no petitions had been submitted in 

 

5

Appendix B



 

 

accordance with the Council’s procedures. 

 
 

24. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, STATEMENTS OF CASE 
 
 The Monitoring Officer reported that no questions, representations and 

statements of case had been submitted in accordance with the Council’s 
procedures. 
 
 

25. REVIEW OF THE LICENSING ACT POLICY 
 
 The Director of Local Services and Enforcement submitted a report requesting 

Members to comment upon the proposed policy and special policy on 
cumulative impact to assist Council when setting the policy for 2016-2021. 
 
The Committee were previously asked to comment upon the policy in August 
2015, and requested to see the comments received as part of the public 
consultation.  These comments were appended to the report together with 
officers’ responses.   
 
The main changes to the Licensing Policy were:- 
 

Paragraph 7.8 - The licensing authority recommends that proper incident 
recording systems are in place. 
 
Paragraph 7.13 - Recognises that it may be appropriate to carry out a 
risk assessment where events promoted by a third party or which are not 
part of the usual business of the premises are to take place. 
 
Paragraph 7.14 – Sets out the steps that the licensing authority would 
expect to be taken to prevent crowd disorder at boxing events. 
 
Paragraph 9.1 – The licensing authority recommends that off-licences in 
areas associated with problem street drinking take certain steps to 
prevent problems occurring. 
 
Paragraph 10.6 – The licensing authority recommends that a risk 
assessment is undertaken and the police are informed about events 
aimed at children in premises which normally sell alcohol. 

 
It was also suggested that the Policy should have a Foreword which would 
provide an opportunity to set out the Council’s views on issues that would not 
normally be included in the policy, such as a vision, aspirations or a desired 
direction of travel for licensed premises in the City.  The foreword would need 
to contain a clear statement that it did not form part of the licensing policy in 
order to prevent it being used as the basis for a potential challenge to a 
decision which had been taken in accordance with the licensing policy and the 
licensing objectives. 
 

6



 

 

RESOLVED: 
1) That the Council be informed that the Committee supports 

the draft Statement of Licensing Policy and recommends it 
be adopted. 

 
2) That the Committee supports the inclusion of a Foreword 

to set the vision, aspirations or a desired direction of travel 
for licensed premises in the City provided it contains a 
clear statement that it does not form part of the licensing 
policy to prevent it being used as the basis for a potential 
challenge. 

 
26. REVIEW OF THE GAMBLING ACT POLICY 
 
 The Director of Local Services and Enforcement submitted a report seeking the 

Committee’s views on the Gambling Policy for 2016 – 2019 prior to its approval 
by Council. 
 
It was noted that the new Gambling Policy for 2016-19 was required to be 
published by 3 January 2016.   
 
It was also suggested that the Policy should have a Foreword which would 
provide an opportunity to set out the Council’s views on issues that would not 
normally be included in the policy, such as a vision, aspirations or a desired 
direction of travel for gambling premises in the City and the Council’s views on 
Fixed Odds Betting Terminals. The foreword would need to contain a clear 
statement that it did not form part of the licensing policy in order to prevent it 
being used as the basis for a potential challenge to a decision which had been 
taken in accordance with the gambling policy.  The Committee also supported 
the development and publication of a local area profile. 
 
RESOLVED: 

1) That the Council be informed that the Committee supports 
the draft Statement of Gambling Policy and recommends it 
be adopted. 

 
2) That the Committee supports the inclusion of a Foreword 

to set the vision, aspirations or a desired direction of travel 
for gambling premises in the City provided it contains a 
clear statement that it does not form part of the gambling 
policy to prevent it being used as the basis for a potential 
challenge. 

 
3) That the Foreword should contain a specific reference to 

the Council’s views on stakes for Fixed Odds Betting 
Terminals.    

 
 
 

7



 

 

27. CLOSE OF MEETING 
 
 The Chair declared the meeting closed at 5.50 pm. 

 

8



1

WARDS AFFECTED
Castle

FORWARD TIMETABLE OF CONSULTATION AND MEETINGS:
Licensing and Public Safety Committee 22 September 2016
__________________________________________________________________________

Outcome of appeal against refusal of premises licence - Licensing Act 2003
Candle Rooms, 25 Gravel Street, Leicester

__________________________________________________________________________

Report of the Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services

1. Purpose of Report 

1.1. To inform the Licensing and Public Safety Committee of the outcome of a 
recent appeal.

2. Recommendations

2.1. Members are asked to note the report.

3. Background

3.1 An application was received from Mr A Madlani on 17 March 2016 for a new 
premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003, for Candle Rooms, 25 Gravel 
Street, Leicester, LE1 3AG. Gravel Street is within a cumulative impact area.

3.2 Leicestershire Police made a representation on the grounds that that granting 
the application would add to the existing late night problems in the city centre 
by increasing the capacity of licensed premises within the cumulative impact 
zone and failing to promote the licensing objectives. 

3.3 As a result of the representation, a hearing took place on 11 May 2016. The 
panel decided to refuse the application and the formal wording was as follows:

The reason for the decision after considering the application carefully and 
also the representation made on behalf of Leicestershire Police was that the 
application had not demonstrated that the grant of the licence with or without 
conditions would not add to the existing problems in the Cumulative Impact 
Zone. The grant of the licence would they feel undermine the promotion of 
the licensing objectives of preventing crime and disorder, preventing public 
nuisance and public safety. The application is accordingly refused.

3.4 Mr Madlani appealed to the Magistrates’ Court.

9

Appendix C



2

4 Appeal

4.1 The appeal was heard at Loughborough Magistrates’ Court on Wednesday 31 
August 2016. Evidence was given by the appellant and by PC Webb of 
Leicestershire Police.

4.2 The Magistrates dismissed the appeal and awarded costs of £2,000 to 
Leicester City Council. The decision is attached in full at Appendix A.

 
5 Financial, Legal and Other Implications

Financial Implications
5.1 There are no significant financial implications arising from this report, although 

it is pleasing that the majority of the Council’s costs related to the appeal were 
awarded by the court.

 
Colin Sharpe, Head of Finance, ext. 37 4081

Legal Implications
5.2 There are no legal implications arising from the court decision.

Nicki Agalamanyi, Solicitor Advocate - Legal Services

6 Other Implications

OTHER IMPLICATIONS YES/
NO

Paragraph/References
Within the Report

Equal Opportunities No
Policy Yes The decisions at the hearing and at 

the appeal are partly based on the 
council’s licensing policy.

Sustainable and Environmental No
Crime and Disorder No
Human Rights Act No
Elderly/People on Low Income No
Corporate Parenting No
Health Inequalities Impact No

7 Background Papers – Local Government Act 1972
None

8 Consultations
None

10



3

9 Report Author
Rachel Hall, Licensing Team Manager
0116 4543047
Rachel.hall@leicester.gov.uk

11

mailto:Rachel.hall@leicester.gov.uk




Ashik Madlani(Candle Rooms) V Leicester City Council
Loughborough Magistrates Court

31s̀  August 2016

1. The Court is dealing with an appeal by Mr Ashik Madlani, the appellant,
against the refusal of the Leicester City Council to grant premises licence in
respect of the Candle Rooms, 25 Gravel Street Leicester. The premises are
situated within the Churchgate Cumulative Impact Zone (CIZ) of Leicester
City Centre.

Background
2. In February 2005 Leicester City Council introduced a special policy on

cumulative impact in the Churchgate area which refers specifically to on and
off licences. This creates a rebuttable presumption, in the event of
representations being received, that an application for a new premises licence
will be refused, unless the applicants can show that their premises are unlikely
to add to the problems of saturation.

3. The appellant acquired the premises in January 2016 and applied to Leicester
City Council for change of use of the premises from a shop to a Function
Suite. This application was successful and the Court refers to the Planning
Permission, Particulars of Decision at p 20-22 of the bundle. It is made clear in
the particulars of decision that the grant of planning permission does not
obviate the need for permission under other Regulations. P21

4. The appellant intends for the premises to be used exclusively for private
events (mainly Weddings, 'Asian primarily and corporate events). The
premises have a maximum capacity of 500 guests with a front entrance onto
Candle Street and a rear exit leading to a private car park with a capacity of
approximately 80 parking spaces.

5. The appellant applied for the grant of a premised licence by application dated
11 h̀ February 2016, this is contained at p29-50 of the bundle. The application
sought a 24 hour licence for 7 days a week with permission for all licensable
activities being sought p 32 part 3 of the Operating schedule.

6. A relevant representation was received from the police on 8 h̀ Apri12016 (p51-
52 of the bundle). The representation related to the prevention of crime and
disorder, the prevention of public nuisance and public safety. The police were
concerned that the appellant had made no reference to the premises being
within the Churchgate CIZ and had not addressed this in the Operating
schedule of his application.

7. The application for the premises license was refused by the licensing
Committee on 11th May 2016. The appellant was informed at the Hearing and
also in writing the reason. for tl~.e decisio~~. after co~isidering the application
carefi~.11y a.iid also the representation made on behalf of Leicestershire police
tivas that tl7.e appli.cc~ti,on. hc~d not demonstrated that the grant of the licence
with or without conditions woarld not ctdd to t11.e existing problems i~~ the CIZ.,
The grant of the licence would they feel un~dern~.ine the pro»z,otion. of the

13

%r



licensi~tig Objectives or preventi~ag crime and disorder, preventing public
nuisance a.rid public safety.

8. Since the decision of the Licensing Committee in May 2016, a number of
conditions have been proposed by the appellant which he submits deals with
any concerns which may persist in relation to the location of the premises
within the CIZ and the adding to the problems of saturation. These conditions
are contained at paragraph 26 a) —~ of the appellants' skeleton argument.

9. The police have considered the proposed conditions and have concluded that
they are in their view insufficient to address the issues witl2in t12at area. P66-
67 of PC Webb's statement. The Conditions were also referred to the licensing
committee who were not prepared to revise their decision,

The law

The appeal is a de novo Hearing of the application based on the evidence now
available before the Court.

The case of R (Hope and Glory Public House Ltd) V City of Westminster
Magistrates Court 7 ors [2011] makes it clear that the court should have close
regard to the decision made by the Licensing Authority. This is reaffirmed in
the case of Sagnata Investments Ltd V Norwich Corporation [1971] QB 614
that not only should the Court of appeal pay close regard to the decision but
that the decision should not lightly be reversed.

The burden of proof rests with the appellant on the balance of probabilities.

The Court's paramount considerations are the Licensing objectives contained
at para 2.2 p95 of the Leicester City Council statement of Licensing Policy
p93 onwards, These are;

1. The prevention of crime and disorder
2. Public safety
3, The prevention of public nuisance
4. The protection of children from harm

These objectives carry equal importance.

In relation to the policy on Cumulative Impact this is set out at para 4 p97.

Judgment

The Court heard evidence from PC Webb and Mr Madlani. Both had
submitted additional statements. PC Webb also provided a log of reported
incidents occurring in the night time economy hours in the CIZ between July
2015 and June 2016. PC Webb stated that this did not include spontaneous
incidents. Although the Court accepts that not all the incidents resulted in
crimes being recorded each one required police resources.

14



We agree with Counsel for the appellant that the key issues are:
1. What is the problem within the CIZ; and
2. Will the grant of a license increase those problems?

In our judgment it is clear from the evidence presented by the Local Authority that
there is saturation of licensed premises within the Churchgate CIZ. This results in an
increased number of alcohol related incidents.

The addition of a significant number of extra people into licensed premises within the
CIZ albeit attending private events will in our judgment increase the risk of crime and
disorder incidents. The concern for the court is the exiting of these guests into the
locality which is already saturated which is likely to increase the potential for alcohol
related incidents.

The Court is not persuaded by the argument that there is spare police capacity if the
nightclubs nearby are not operating to their maximum or if less than 500 people attend
the Candle Rooms. By granting a license the Court would be adding to the number of
people within the CIZ and therefore increasing the risks of crime and disorder issues.

The Court has considered the conditions proposed by the appellant at paragraph 26 of
his skeleton argument.

In our view these proposals do not address the challenging conditions within the CIZ
as a whole but merely the conditions within the premises, car park and its door
environs.

The Court has noted the revised application by the appellant regarding licensing hours
and activities. However as previously mentioned the Court is not satisfied that these
are sufficient to prevent existing problems from being exacerbated. For the sake of
completeness the court has considered the car parking issues and whilst the appellant
has made arrangements for this the key concern remains the fact that the car parks are
within the CIZ adding to its saturation.

The appeal is dismissed.

15





 1 

WARDS AFFECTED 
Castle 
 
 
 
 

 
FORWARD TIMETABLE OF CONSULTATION AND MEETINGS: 
Licensing and Public Safety Committee 22 September 2016 
 __________________________________________________________________________  
 

Summary Update of Penalty Points Scheme 

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Report of the Director of Neighbourhood and Environmental Services 

1. Purpose of Report  

1.1. To update the Licensing and Public Safety Committee on the council’s 
penalty points scheme 

2. Recommendations 

2.1. Members are asked to note the report. 

 
3. Background 

 
3.1. The penalty points scheme relates to licensed drivers of hackney carriages 

and private hire vehicles. It came into effect on 1st December 2015 on a one 
year trial basis, and will be reviewed by the City Mayor for determination. 

 
3.2. The aim of a penalty points scheme is to provide a consistent approach to 

dealing with unsatisfactory conduct by licensed drivers, thereby improving 
driving standards. The scheme acts as a record of a driver’s behaviour and 
conduct to ascertain whether they are a fit and proper person to hold a 
licence. The scheme does not prejudice the Council’s ability to take other 
action, such as prosecution where this is considered appropriate. If a driver 
has been given penalty points, it may reduce the duration of the next driver’s 
licence that we issue on renewal. 

 
3.3. The current system of enforcement remains unchanged. Any contravention 

of statutes, rules, regulations and conditions are dealt with in a number of 
ways, including written notices, written warnings, suspension notices, and 
prosecution. 

 
3.4. The penalty points scheme is separate to the guidelines on convictions, 

which continues to run in its present form. 
 

17

Appendix D



 2 

3.5. The penalty points scheme deals with unsatisfactory conduct. Points may be 
issued according to the agreed and published tariff. The points tariff is as 
follows:   
 

 Offence/Breach of Condition Maximum 
Points 

Applicable 

1 Providing false or misleading information on licence 
application form, or failing to provide relevant information. 

3 

2 Failure to use taxi meter for journeys within prescribed 
distance 

5 

3 Refusal to accept hiring without reasonable cause  5 

4 Parking a vehicle in contravention of parking restrictions  4 

5 Failure to display appropriate plates, or plate improperly 
secured, or failure to display door signs. 

3 

6 Failure to wear driver’s badge 3 

7 Failure to undertake 6 monthly vehicle examination  4 

8 Driving a vehicle in an unroadworthy condition (e.g. 
prohibition notice) 

4 

9 Failure to notify Licensing Authority of a conviction 3 

10 Making of false or misleading statement on licence 
application form 

3 

11 Failure to comply with the drivers’ code of conduct. 1 

 
3.6. Points given to a driver remain on their record for three years from the date 

they are applied. This was considered to be of sufficient length so as to 
allow any licensee who may find themselves accumulating penalty points to 
modify their conduct before facing the possibility of sanctions being taken 
against them. It is also consistent with the length of time penalty points 
remain on DVLA licences. 

 
3.7. Penalty points are currently issued by the Head of Regulatory Services. 

Decisions take into account all of the circumstances and are based on 
documentary evidence, evidence provided by enforcement staff that were 
present when the infringement took place or written statements from 
members of the public. Drivers are notified as soon as possible after the 
alleged conduct took place and are given an opportunity to give an 
explanation of the circumstances of the allegations being made. 

 
3.8. If a driver exceeds 12 penalty points in any three year period, they will be 

referred to the Licensing Enforcement Sub-Committee, which would 
consider whether the driver was a fit and proper person to retain their 
hackney carriage and private hire driver’s licence. The Enforcement Sub-
Committee would be provided with the information which lead to the 
imposition of the penalty points and the driver would be given an opportunity 
to explain why they should still be considered a fit and proper person to hold 
a licence. Options available to the Committee would include revocation or 

18



 3 

suspension of the licence, imposition of additional conditions, such as further 
training, or to take no action. 

 
3.9. The penalty points scheme will be reviewed after 12 months to assess 

whether it is achieving its objectives, whether it is working fairly, whether the 
points tariff for each type of offence is reasonable and whether other 
categories of infringement need to be added.  

 

4 Penalty points issued 
 

4.1 In a period of eight months a total of 60 licensees have received penalty 
 points. These are summarised below: 

 

Offence Number of Licensees issued 

Failure to undertake 6 monthly vehicle 
examination 

21 

Parking a vehicle in contravention of 
parking restrictions 

31 

Driving a vehicle in an unroadworthy 
condition (eg prohibition notice) 

3 

Failure to display appropriate plates, or 
plate improperly secured, or failure to 
display door signs. 

5 

 
 
4.2 Appendix A gives more detail about the penalty points that have been issued 

to date. 
 
 
 
 
5 Financial, Legal and Other Implications 
 
 Financial Implications 
5.1 There are no significant financial implications arising from this report. 
  

Colin Sharpe, Head of Finance, ext. 37 4081 
 
 Legal Implications 
5.2 There are no legal implications arising from the court decision. 
 

Nicki Agalamanyi, Solicitor Advocate - Legal Services 
 
 

 
 
 

19



 4 

6 Other Implications 
 

OTHER IMPLICATIONS YES/
NO 

Paragraph/References 
Within the Report 

Equal Opportunities No  

Policy Yes This policy is on a trial basis and will 
be reviewed by the City Mayor prior to 

a final determination. 

Sustainable and Environmental No  

Crime and Disorder No  

Human Rights Act No  

Elderly/People on Low Income No  

Corporate Parenting No  

Health Inequalities Impact No  

 
 
7 Background Papers  

None 
 
 

8 Consultations 
 All hackney carriage, private hire vehicle, drivers and operator licence holders 
 were consulted on the initial proposals. This consultation ended on the 16th 
 August 2015. 
 
 
9 Report Author 

Bobby Smiljanic, Licensing Team Manager 
0116 4543042 
Bobby.Smiljanic@leicester.gov.uk 

20

mailto:Bobby.Smiljanic@leicester.gov.uk


 5 

4. Appendix  

  
Reason Location Date Issued HCV or PHV Decision Date Outcome

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 20/12/15 PHV 08/01/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Horsefair Street 22/01/16 HCV 01/03/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Horsefair Street 22/01/16 HCV 01/03/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 23/01/16 HCV 01/03/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 23/01/16 HCV 01/03/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 23/01/16 HCV 01/03/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Horsefair Street 24/01/16 PHV 01/03/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Belvoir Street 24/01/16 HCV 01/03/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 03/02/16 PHV 01/03/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 03/02/16 HCV 01/03/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 17/02/16 PHV 12/04/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 17/02/16 PHV 12/04/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Highcross Street 22/02/16 HCV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Highcross Street 22/02/16 HCV 12/04/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Highcross Street 22/02/16 HCV 12/04/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Highcross Street 22/02/16 HCV 12/04/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Highcross Street 22/02/16 HCV 12/04/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention East Park Road 03/03/16 PHV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Highcross Street 03/03/16 PHV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Granby Street 07/03/16 PHV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 14/03/16 PHV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 14/03/16 PHV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 14/03/16 PHV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 14/03/16 PHV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Horsefair Street 14/03/16 HCV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Welford Road 11/03/16 PHV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Welford Road 11/03/16 PHV 03/05/16 4 Points issued

Driving Unroadworthy vehicle VTS 06/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Driving Unroadworthy vehicle VTS 06/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Failure to display Plate/Signs VTS 06/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 3 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 14/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 14/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 14/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 14/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 14/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 14/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 14/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 14/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 21/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 21/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 21/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 21/04/16 PHV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Jubilee Square 21/04/16 HCV 14/06/16 4 Points issued

Failure to display Plate/Signs Millstone Lane 10/05/16 PHV 05/07/16 3 Points issued

Failure to display Plate/Signs Albion St/Belvoir St 13.05.16 PHV 05/07/16 3 Points issued

Failure to display Plate/Signs Elmcroft Avenue 13.05.16 PHV 05/07/16 3 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/05/16 PHV 05/07/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/05/16 PHV 05/07/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/05/16 PHV 05/07/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/05/16 PHV 05/07/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/05/16 PHV 05/07/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/05/16 PHV 05/07/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/05/16 PHV 05/07/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Granby Street 03/06/16 HCV 05/07/16 4 Points issued

Failure to display Plate/Signs Granby Street 07.06.16 PHV 05/07/16 3 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/06/16 HCV 09/08/16 2 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/06/16 PHV 09/08/16 4 Points issued

Failure to attend 6 Monthly N/A 13/06/16 PHV 09/08/16 4 Points issued

Driving Unroadworthy vehicle Vehicle Testing Station 18.06.16 PHV 09/08/16 4 Points issued

Parking Contravention Bishop Street 23/06/16 PHV 09/08/16 4 Points issued

21




	Agenda
	4 TERMS OF REFERENCE
	6 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	9 OUTCOME OF APPEAL AGAINST REFUSAL OF PREMISES LICENCE - LICENSING ACT 2003 - CANDLE ROOMS, 25 GRAVEL STREET, LEICESTER
	Licensing Committee 22 Sep 2016 - Candle Rooms appeal appendix A

	10 SUMMARY UPDATE OF PENALTY POINTS SCHEME

